
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 19, 2018 
 
 
Kelly Mullin, AICP 
Washoe County Building and Planning Division 
1001 East Ninth Street 
Reno, Nevada 89512 
 
Re: The Estates at Calle de la Plata  
 
Dear Kelly, 
 
As we discussed in our telephone conversation, this letter outlines some additional considerations 
in support of the Master Plan Amendment and Regulatory Zone Amendment requests being 
sought for the Estates at Calle de la Plata project.  We would like these considerations to be 
contemplated by County staff/reviewing agencies in addition to those provided in the previously 
submitted materials. 
 
Washoe County recently approved two new residential subdivisions directly north of the project 
site on Calle de la Plata.  These projects are moving forward through the final map process and 
are expected to commence construction this summer.  The current Industrial designation assigned 
to the Estates at Calle de la Plata site has the potential to create truck traffic that conflicts with 
residential projects that directly adjoin the site.  Furthermore, Industrial use will generate truck 
traffic at the Pyramid Highway/Calle de la Plata intersection.  Although this intersection is set to 
be improved and signalized in the coming months, residents in the area have been very vocal in 
raising concerns over the existing truck traffic at the intersection.  Retention of Industrial zoning 
on East Calle de la Plata would only exacerbate these concerns. 
 
As noted in the previously submitted materials, Industrial use has the potential for far greater 
impacts to residential uses to the north, south, and east in terms of noise, lighting, truck traffic, 
and overall site design.  The Industrial designation would allow for large warehouse buildings that 
are out of scale with surrounding homes and have the potential to block views, include idling 
trucks, 24-hour operation, etc.  The Suburban Residential and MDS designations proposed are far 
more in character with the surrounding area(s). 
 
The requested residential land use can help to address the current housing crisis faced in Washoe 
County by diversifying single family residential options in the area.  Additionally, infrastructure 
exists to serve a future project and the densities proposed will serve to maximize infrastructure 
efficiency (without over burdening it), providing Washoe County with a better overall return on 
investment. 
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The project applicant, Blackstone Development Group, has reached out to the adjoining property 
owner to determine if he would like to add his 10-acre parcel to this request.  Through the owner’s 
representative, it was indicated that the property was purchased as an investment and there “are 
no plans to develop an industrial use.”  It was also stated that there is no interest at this time to 
pursue any changes to the property over current conditions. 
 
A letter from the owner of the subject parcel has also been submitted to Washoe County stating 
that there is no intention to ever develop the property for industrial use, citing numerous 
circumstances that make industrial development at the site unviable.  We respectfully request 
that this letter be included with any public materials, staff reports, etc. 
 
Rubicon did solicit input from all adjoining property owners.  Of the 20+ letters sent, we have 
received 3 responses to date.  Two of these were from owners within the Bridle Path subdivision 
to the south.  One owner indicated they were unaware of the existing Industrial zoning and stated 
that they would much prefer to back up to residential use than industrial use.  The second owner 
simply stated that they would prefer residential use over industrial buildings.  The third response 
was from an owner that wished to reserve any comment for future meetings/hearings once they 
had ample time to review the pending applications. 
 
A notification letter of the proposed amendments was also sent to the Bridle Path Homeowners 
Association (subdivision to the south).  We received a letter from the HOA attorney stating that 
they were opposed to any trail connections between the Estates at Calle de la Plata and Bridle 
Path.  While this, in our opinion, is unfortunate, it can be addressed with a future tentative map 
application.  Rubicon offered to meet with HOA representatives but was informed by their 
attorney that any discussions would be premature at this point. 
 
Future trails within the Estates at Calle de la Plata are planned for public use.  Thus, residents of 
Bridle Path could connect through the site, connecting with the regional trail system that provides 
access to Sugarloaf Peak.  This pedestrian and equestrian access could not occur if Industrial use 
was retained.  This would not necessarily mean that public access from the Estates at Calle de la 
Plata to the Bridle Path trail system would be permitted. 
 
A community meeting to discuss the MPA and RZA requests is scheduled for July 31, 2018 at 6:00 
pm at Spanish Springs Elementary School.  At that time additional community input will be 
gathered and additional comments and considerations can be provided, as necessary.  As we 
discussed, Blackstone Development Group wishes to pursue a hearing before the Planning 
Commission in September.  If significant issues are raised at the community meeting, the applicant 
will consult with Washoe County staff to determine if adjustments to the schedule are necessary. 
 
Thank you for your ongoing assistance with the Estates at Calle de la Plata project.  We look 
forward to working with you as the project progresses.  In the meantime, please do not hesitate 
to contact me with any questions or concerns.  I can be reached at (775) 425-4800 or 
mrailey@rubicondesigngroup.com.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Michael Railey 
Partner 
 
cc: Blackstone Development Group 

mailto:mrailey@rubicondesigngroup.com





























































































































































































































































